
 
 

 
i 

 
Cambridge City Council 

West Central Area Committee 
 

Date:  Thursday, 10 September 2020 

Time:  6.30 pm 

Venue:  This meeting is taking place virtually via Microsoft Teams 

Contact:  democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk, tel:01223 457000 
 
Agenda 
 

1    Election of Chair and Vice Chair - WCAC  

2    Welcome, Introduction and Apologies for Absence  

3    Declarations of Interest  

4    Minutes (Pages 3 - 8) 

5    Matters and Actions Arising From the Minutes (Pages 9 - 10) 

6    Open Forum  

Items for Decision 

7    Policing and Safer Neighbourhoods (Pages 11 - 16) 

Items for Discussion 

8    WCAC - Environmental Report (Pages 17 - 38) 

9    City Centre Recovery Plan  

 Committee will receive an oral update from Joel Carré, Head of 
Environmental Services 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
ii 

 
 
 

City Councillors: Martinelli (Chair), Porrer (Vice-Chair), Bick, Cantrill, 
Chadwick, Gehring, Hipkin, Matthews and Payne 

County Councillors: Harrison, Nethsingha and Richards 
 

Information for the public 
Details how to observe the Committee meeting will be published no later than 
24 hours before the meeting.  
 
Members of the public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting, 
except during the consideration of exempt or confidential items, by following 
the link to be published on the Council’s website.  
 
Any person who participates in the meeting in accordance with the Council’s 
public speaking time, is deemed to have consented to being recorded and to 
the use of those images (where participating via video conference) and/or 
sound recordings for webcast purposes. When speaking, members of the 
public should not disclose any personal information of any individual as this 
might infringe the rights of that individual and breach the Data Protection Act. 
 
If members of the public wish to address the committee please contact 
Democratic Services by 12 noon two working days before the meeting.  
 
Questions can be submitted throughout the meeting to 
Democratic.Services@cambridge.gov.uk and we will endeavour to respond to 
questions during the discussion on the relevant agenda item. If we run out of 
time a response will be provided to members of the public outside of the 
meeting and published on the relevant Area Committee meeting webpage. 
 
For full information about committee meetings, committee reports, councillors 
and the democratic process:  

 Website: http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk 

 Email: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk 

 Phone: 01223 457000 

 

mailto:Democratic.Services@cambridge.gov.uk
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk


West Central Area Committee  Thursday, 5 March 2020 

 

 
 
 

1 

WEST CENTRAL AREA COMMITTEE 5 March 2020 
 6.30  - 8.40 pm 
 
Present 
 
Area Committee Members: Councillors Martinelli (Chair), Porrer (Vice-Chair), 
Bick, Chadwick, Gehring, Matthews, Payne, Harrison and Nethsingha 
 
County Councillors Harrison, Nethsinga , Scutt 
 
Officers:  
John Richards: Project Manager 
Community Funding and Development Manager: Jackie Hanson  
Democratic Services Manager: Gary Clift 
 
Other Officers in Attendance: 
Inspector Rogerson 
 
 

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL 

20/1/WAC Welcome, Introduction and Apologies for Absence 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Cantrill, Hipkin and County 
Councillor Richards.  

20/2/WAC Declarations of Interest 
 
No declarations of interest were made. 

20/3/WAC Minutes 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 12th September 2019 were approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair.  

20/4/WAC Matters and Actions Arising From the Minutes 
 
The Action sheet was noted and an updated copy can be viewed at the 
following link under ‘Committee Action Sheet’. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



West Central Area Committee  Thursday, 5 March 2020 

 

 
 
 

2 

Councillor Robertson, the Executive Councillor for Finance and Resources and 
John Richards, city council public realm team leader were present and made 
the following comments regarding Kings Parade Traffic Barrier: 
 

i. Executive Councillors are intent on reviewing the temporary barrier, its 
location and design, with the matter being submitted to councillors at a 
Strategy and Resources Scrutiny Committee. 

ii. The temporary barrier is the same as used in as used in other major 
tourist centres around the UK and was installed on police advice and of 
the same type that is procured by the police. 

iii. There are two Traffic Orders in place which can run for up to 18 months.  
They can be extended temporarily, but a decision will need to be made 
to make them permanent or not soon after-ie. any extension to 18 
months cannot continue indefinitely.  There will be a public consultation 
on any permanent solution. 

iv. Any proposal will need to take into account the City Centre 
Supplementary Planning Guidance and City Centre Access proposals 
from Greater Cambridge Partnership. 

 
Councillor Bick stated that consulting ward councillors during the planning of 
the temporary barrier would have been productive and emphasised the need 
to do so going forward. 

20/5/WAC Open Forum 
 
Members of the public asked questions set out below. 
 
1. A member of the public raised the following issue:  
 
As a Castle resident valuing Castle Hill and the path from Castle Street 
towards Victoria Road, what is the timescale for Suffolk County Council (the 
determining authority) to resolve the issue? 

 
County Councillor Nethsingha undertook to find out the latest on this issue and 
report back. 
 
County Councillor Scutt stated that there was a current petition on the County 
Council website (‘Protect Wessex Place cut through’) regarding access across 
the site as described the member of the public, which runs until 31 March-see 
link 
https://cambridgeshire.cmis.uk.com/ccc_live/ePetitions.aspx 
 

Page 4

https://cambridgeshire.cmis.uk.com/ccc_live/ePetitions.aspx


West Central Area Committee  Thursday, 5 March 2020 

 

 
 
 

3 

Councillor Chadwick stated that the Ramblers Association had also petitioned 
Suffolk County Council. 
https://cambridgeramblers.org/latest-news/ 
 
The Committee agreed that the Chair should also write to Suffolk County 
Council re-iterating support for access in perpetuity. 
 
Action Point: (i) County Councillor Nethsingha undertook to find out when 
Suffolk CC is expected to determine the Castle Mound application. (ii) 
Councillor Martinelli to write to Suffolk County Council to express the Area 
Committee’s continued support for the application and to ensure access for the 
public. 
 
2. A member of the public raised the following issue: 

 
Bus services running on Histon Road during inbound lane closure when the 
Greater Cambridge Partnership work begins- there is real concern that 
residents of Histon Road and Victoria Road will have no public transport 
available.  Histon Road Residents Association asked the Area Committee to 
support residents’ call for public transport provision during the inbound lane 
closure. 
 
Action point: Councillors agreed to support the residents request and the 
Chair would write to Stagecoach and GCP. 

20/6/WAC Policing and Safer Neighbourhoods WCAC 
 
The Committee received a report from Inspector Rogerson regarding policing 
and safer neighbourhood trends. 
 
The report outlined actions taken since the last report. The report should have 
been considered in December 2019.  The committee were given an oral 
update to the written report by Inspector Rogerson. 
 
Inspector Rogerson recommended that two of the priority issues for the Area 
Committee continue namely (i) the focus on street based anti-social behaviour 
around Grafton Centre and Park Street and (ii) ASB on green spaces-
particularly Parkers Piece and near Hobbs Pavillion.  The Area Committee 
noted that these two areas of policing priority also focussed on drug 
dealing/County Lines and also noted that this would be accompanied by a 
focus on the night time economy as the evenings get lighter/warmer. 
 

Page 5

https://cambridgeramblers.org/latest-news/


West Central Area Committee  Thursday, 5 March 2020 

 

 
 
 

4 

Action by: Police/Community Safety team 
 
County Councillor Harrison suggested that a meeting was set up with the 
police and County Council officers to consider further the traffic issues 
associated with illegal moped driving.  The Committee agreed that this would 
not continue as a policing priority. 
 
Action by: County Councillor Harrison 
 
Members of the Committee commended the way that the police had handled 
the Extinction Rebellion week of protest in February. 

20/7/WAC Estate Improvement Scheme 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Bick, the Chair undertook to contact 
the officers for an update for all members where all the council housing 
properties were within the new area committee boundaries. 
 
Action: Councillor Martinelli 

20/8/WAC WCAC Area Committee Grants 2020-21 
 
In answer to a question from Councillor Gehring concerning the budget 
allocation between the area committees, the community funding and 
development officer undertook to provide the population and poverty 
information which informs the way the total budget is divided. 
 
Resolved- 
To approve the recommendations in paragraph 2 of the officer report.  

20/9/WAC Environmental Improvement Programme 
 
The public realm and project delivery team leader introduced the report.  The 
committee noted that all the potential schemes requested by councillors could 
be supported.  As regards the strategic environmental improvements, these 
would be approved by the Executive Councillor in consultation with the Area 
Chairs. 
 
Members of the Committee spoke in support of their individual schemes. 
 
Members requested that for the next report, a list of outstanding projects would 
be helpful.  The officer also noted that Members appreciated being kept in the 

Page 6



West Central Area Committee  Thursday, 5 March 2020 

 

 
 
 

5 

loop on the projects in their Wards as it can be the case that once approved, 
the councillor gets no update until it is delivered.  Keeping ward councillors 
informed can help safeguard against delays or wasted resources on schemes. 
 
Resolved- 
To approve the recommendations in paragraph 2 of the officer report.  

20/10/WAC Environmental Report - WCAC 
 
In noting the report, Councillors stated that there were on-going problems with 
litter and noise at punt stations and fly-tipping in Newnham.  Councillor 
Chadwick raised the cleanliness of Sidney Sussex Street and would contact 
the officers. 

20/11/WAC West/Central Area Committee Dates 2020/21 
 
The Committee agreed the dates- 18 June, 10 September, 26 November and 
11 March 2021. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 8.40 pm 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



COMMITTEE ACTION SHEET 
 
 

Committee West/Central Area Committee 

Date  05/03/20 

Circulated on  30/03/20 

Updated  

 

ACTION LEAD 
OFFICER/ 
MEMBER 

TIMESCALE PROGRESS 

19/25/WCAC Q3 
 
Cycle theft from 
Rail Station 

Councillor 
Martinelli  

 To discuss the matter with 
Cambridge Cycling Campaign, 
Greater Anglia and the Police. 
 
A motion went to Council, which 
was passed, requesting action 
from Greater Anglia and the 
police. Councillor Martinelli has 
been in contact with the police and 
cycle campaign directly and will 
discuss at committee. 
 
A meeting had been scheduled in 
December with Greater Anglia but 
did not because of the General 
Election 
 

19/27/WCAC Q2 
 
Customer 
satisfaction with 
complaint 
resolution 

Nick Kester  The Environmental Health records 
were limited as the level of detail 
and how much it was appropriate 
to share in the report. The Officer 
undertook to investigate 
satisfaction levels if possible. 
Update: 
Waiting for report from customer 
services which will break down the 
figures to complaints resolved 
stage1, resolved stage2, or were 
escalated further, customer 
satisfaction levels are currently 
recorded. 
Update August 2020: 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



1. Officers do not currently 
have a satisfaction recording 
for the reports / works they 
complete, as the works 
recorded is by an officer with 
the relevant case work (i.e. 
communications, evidence 
etc). The only satisfaction 
available would be in terms 
of compliments / complaints 
received through to the 
council complaints process – 
and this is not currently 
reported on as part of the 
Environmental Report.  

2. No breakdown of cases is 
provided for issues such as 
noise as the current system 
does not support routine 
queries by officers, and 
requires extensive 
intervention from ICT team 
in order to obtain the data.  

3. Formal action is recorded on 
the report, including 
breakdown of reasons for 
fixed penalty notices. 
However a lot of the action 
completed by EH officers is 
informal and can have been 
a long process.  

4. Officers will highlight any key 
points for the period in the 
summary section of the 
report.   

5. With the implementation of 
the new EH system there 
may be the ability to report 
on more comprehensive 
data, but at the present time 
it is not possible.  

 
 

Page 10



20/5/WAC-Castle 
Mound 

CC 
Nethsingha 
 
Cllr 
Martinelli 

 (i) County Councillor Nethsingha 
undertook to find out when Suffolk 
CC is expected to determine the 
Castle Mound application. (ii) 
Councillor Martinelli to write to 
Suffolk County Council to express 
the Area Committee’s continued 
support for the application and to 
ensure access for the public. 
 

20/5/WAC-Histon 
Road:bus services 

Cllr 
Martinelli 

 To write to Stagecoach to support 
requirement for bus services to 
continue on Histon Road when 
Greater Cambridge Works are 
scheduled. 

    

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Neighbourhood Profile 

Cambridge City West/Central – September 2020 

 

Wards: Castle, Market and Newnham 

Produced by: 

Cambridgeshire Constabulary: 

• Inspector Edward McNeill 

• Sergeant Kevin Misik 

Community Safety Team, Cambridge City Council: 

• Lynda Kilkelly, Community Safety Manager 

• Sarah Steggles, Senior Community Safety Officer (Anti-Social Behaviour) 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



2 

 

Contents 

 

1. Introduction 3 

Aim 3 

Methodology 3 

2. Current Areas of Concern 3 

Street-based ASB around The Grafton Centre and Park Street car park areas 3 

Anti-social activity on the green spaces in the area 4 

Night-time economy 5 

3. Proactive Work and Emerging Issues 5 

Cambridgeshire Constabulary 5 

Cambridge City Council 5 

4. Additional Information 6 

5. Recommendations 6 

 

  

Page 14



3 

 

1. Introduction 

Aim 

The aim of the Neighbourhood profile update is to provide an overview of action taken 
since the last reporting period, identify on-going and emerging crime and disorder issues, 
and provide recommendations for future areas of concern and activity in order to facilitate 
effective policing and partnership working in the area. 

The document should be used to inform multi-agency neighbourhood panel meetings and 
neighbourhood policing teams, so that issues can be identified, effectively prioritised and 
partnership problem solving activity undertaken. 

Methodology 

This document was produced using data received from the following sources: 

• The Safer Neighbourhood Policing Team for the area; 

• The City Council’s Community Safety Team; 

• The general public, via online and telephone crime and intelligence reporting; and 

• Consultation with elected Ward and County members. 

2. Current Areas of Concern 

At the West/Central Area Committee meeting of 5 March 2020, the committee 
recommended addressing the following local areas of concern: 

• Street-based ASB around The Grafton Centre and Park Street car park areas; 

• Anti-social activity on the green spaces in the area; and 

• Night-time economy. 

Lead officers and actions to be taken were agreed following the committee meeting.  The 
work undertaken and current situation is detailed below. 

Street-based ASB around The Grafton Centre and Park Street car park areas 

Objective:  To deal with the issue of street-based anti-social behaviour (ASB) in and 
around The Grafton Centre and its car parks, and the Park Street car park area. 

Action Taken:  There is an ongoing operation, which is aimed at dealing with street-based 
ASB across the City, called Operation Ferndale.  Whilst this covers the whole City, most of 
the work is centred around key locations, several of which are in the West/Central area.  
There are several different streams of work, which target both key problematic locations 
and individuals.  Over the reporting period, there has been some key multi-agency work 
carried out.  Although the effects of the lockdown have changed the dynamics of this 
situation, the work carried out by the various support services to house and support this 

Page 15



4 

 

cohort of people has been outstanding, and whilst it is true to state that some of the issues 
have reduced, it has not stopped completely.  The reduced numbers have meant that 
there have been no identified trends within the car parks or the area around the Grafton 
Centre.  Whilst there are no issues in this area, we have continued to work within this area 
of business across the wider panel area.  The previous report refers to people who have 
been given orders not to be in the car parks and these orders have had the desired effect 
and they have not caused any further issues. 

Current Situation:  There are still occasional issues at the locations, but these are limited 
due to the reduction in rough sleeping.  Reports of anti-social behaviour (ASB) are being 
dealt with as part of the ongoing work on Operation Ferndale.  The focus of this operation 
is around dealing with problematic locations and individuals, working with the City Council 
and various other support agencies to ensure that people engage with the support 
available to them.  Targeted enforcement action will be taken against those who decline to 
engage.  As a result of this operation, there have been several notable successes with 
people who have accepted help and accommodation.  This, coupled with the support that 
they have received, changed their behaviour and the offending has significantly reduced.  
The purpose of this project is to work with our partners, to understand how and why a 
person is offending, and look to address these issues. 

Lead Officer:  PS 686 Kevin Misik 

Anti-social activity on the green spaces in the area 

Objective:  To deal with reports of ASB on the various green spaces across the area. 

Action Taken:  This item took on a very different spin when lockdown occurred, and the 
use or misuse of the City’s green spaces became one of the major tasks undertaken by 
the team to support the lockdown.  As the lockdown has lifted, the team has continued to 
focus on this piece of work.  The issues that we have encountered have ranged from small 
gatherings of people during lockdown to larger, organised yet unofficial events.  These 
have been dealt with via a range of different tactics ranging from the 4E (engage, explain, 
encourage, then enforce) COVID-19 Engagement Strategy, to the use of dispersal orders 
and major policing operations to deal with issues that have presented themselves, for 
example, the issues on Midsummer Common on the day of the cancelled fair.  That is not 
to say that since the further relaxing of lockdown that there have not been any issues.  
With the hotter weather, there continues to be reports of ASB across the green spaces, 
most noticeably Jesus Green, which has resulted in targeted patrols in these areas to 
prevent and deal with any issues that are reported. 

Current Situation:  The hot weather, coupled with time away from schools, has resulted in 
higher calls for service to green spaces.  Lockdown has increased this as people have 
been keeping away from town centres, with restrictions on the night-time economy and 
consumption of alcohol on licenced premises.  Police patrols with neighbourhood policing 
resources and other policing resources will continue. 

Lead Officer:  PS 686 Kevin Misik 

Page 16



5 

 

Night-time economy 

Objective:  Working in partnership to effectively manage the night-time economy in 
Cambridge. 

Action Taken:  Given the lockdown, the night-time economy shut down for a considerable 
period of time and the gradual unlocking of the sector has itself presented a number of 
issues which both the police and our various partners have worked to address.  There 
have been several changes to the night-time economy and people are starting to return, 
albeit in lower numbers. 

Current Situation:  There are still challenges with the policing of the night-time economy, 
but the timing and numbers have changed, and it remains a key function of the 
neighbourhood and wider policing teams.  We have had to adapt the operation we run 
following the changes in the night-time economy.  There has been a need to support the 
people who work in this sector, to understand and implement the government guidelines, 
which effects both the on-site sales as well as potential off-site sales.  This has meant that 
our patrols in the night-time economy are now much more inclusive of the green spaces in 
the City then they have been historically.  As well as working to prevent alcohol-related 
disorder and crime, we have carried out a range of safeguarding work both directly in the 
night-time economy itself and also work from our Communications team around a variety 
of issues, for example on-line dating after COVID-19.  As the guidance from the 
government changes, so will our work in this area. 

Lead Officer:  PS 686 Kevin Misik 

3. Proactive Work and Emerging Issues 

Cambridgeshire Constabulary 

Over the period of lockdown, the Neighbourhood team has continued to work to address 
the issues effecting the people who live and work within the West/Central area.  Our 
partnership links have allowed us to understand and address the wide number of issues 
that have become evident during the pandemic, ranging from working with the City Council 
around their commitment to house the homeless people in the City, to work with a range of 
partners to help safely reopen the retail and leisure functions of the City.  These 
challenges have been unique in nature, but the officers have been able to understand and 
deal with the issues that have presented themselves over this time. 

Now, the issues around the area are now returning to what is being described as the “new 
normal”.  There are developing issues around King Street/Manor Place with street drinking 
and associated anti-social behaviour (ASB), which the team are looking into.  We are also 
adapting our plans with the night-time economy to reflect the current changes in this 
sector.  We continue to work with our partners to deal with street-based ASB. 

Cambridge City Council 

Throughout the lockdown period, the Community Safety Team has continued to operate a 
frontline service.  We have continued to provide a responsive service, using virtual options 
where appropriate, and would encourage residents to contact us with their concerns. 

Page 17



6 

 

During the lockdown, the landscape has been different to what we would have expected 
during normal times.  During this time, the Community Safety Team has continued to work 
with partners around any reported issues.  The Team has been involved in the work being 
undertaken by the City Council to house the homeless within the City. 

We are aware that as restrictions have been relaxed and the “new normal” is taking form, 
our client group have been quite mobile and we are starting to see emerging issues 
around King Street/Manor Place in terms of alcohol-related anti-social behaviour (ASB) 
reports.  The good weather means we are now receiving reports of congregations on open 
spaces and associated ASB.  We will continue to highlight these hot spots with the 
strategic forums of the multi-agency problem solving group (PSG) and the street life 
working group, with a view of tasking and actioning, as appropriate. 

Cambridge City Council welcomes the fact that its initiative Cambridge Street Aid has been 
shortlisted as a finalist for a national award.  Street Aid has continued to raise donations 
and provide grants throughout the lockdown period and beyond. 

4. Additional Information 

At neighbourhood level, the POLICE.UK website allows for swift access to local crime and 
anti-social behaviour data at street level.  The website can display crimes on a map as well 
as in chart format, along with trend lines.  The three most important sections within this 
website are: ‘overview’; ‘crime’; and ‘view detailed statistics.  This gives a good overview of 
issues within the local area. 

5. Recommendations 

None are advised.  We seek views from this committee on those local areas of concern 
that the police and partner agencies can work together to action and report on at the next 
reporting committee meeting. 

Page 18

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/street-aid-help-for-people-on-the-streets
https://www.police.uk/cambridgeshire/


Page 1 of 22 
 

Environmental 
Report 
 
 
Cambridge West / Central Area 
[Covering the wards of Castle, Market and Newnham] 
 
 
Period of February to July 2020 
 

  

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



Page 2 of 22 
 

Contents 
 

1. Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

2. West / Central Area Profiles ...................................................................................................................................... 4 

Ward Profile: Castle ....................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Ward Profile: Market ...................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Ward Profile: Newnham ............................................................................................................................................... 12 

Community Engagement Team Updates .................................................................................................................... 15 

Greater Cambridge Shared Waste Service Update: ................................................................................................... 16 

3. Environmental and Waste Data ............................................................................................................................... 17 

Public Realm [West / Central Area] ......................................................................................................................... 17 

Private Realm [West / Central Area] ........................................................................................................................ 19 

Waste and Recycling Data [Great Cambridge Area] ............................................................................................... 20 

4. Key contacts ............................................................................................................................................................ 21 

5. Volunteer schemes .................................................................................................................................................. 22 

Time Credits ................................................................................................................................................................ 22 

Streets and Open Spaces Volunteers: ........................................................................................................................ 22 

Recycling Champions: ................................................................................................................................................. 22 

 

 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 20



Page 3 of 22 
 

1. Introduction 
 
This report provides an overview of the council’s Streets and Open Spaces, Environmental Health 
and Shared Waste service activity in the Area Committee area over the past six months.   
 
This report provides open data on service performance, so that City and County Councillors and 
their constituents are informed of what service activity is happening in their area; and can engage 
in and help to shape this activity, including identifying specific local service requests/ issues.  
 

1. Streets and Open Spaces Operations Team: 
a. Street cleansing and Grounds Maintenance – cleans all residential streets and public 

land and maintains all grass and shrub beds across the city. 
b. Community Engagement Team - works with Community Payback and Streets and 

Open Spaces volunteers to deliver community nominated improvement projects. 
c. Dog Warden Service – works to deal with dog fouling and stray dogs across the city  
d. Enforcement Team - investigate and act against instances of environmental crime in 

public places across the city.  
2. Streets and Open Spaces Assets Development Team: 
3. Streets and Open Spaces Projects Team  

a. Projects  
b. Parks  
c. Trees   

4. The Greater Cambridge Shared  Waste Service provide rubbish and recycling collections 
from homes and business  Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire and empties 32,000 bins 
each day.  It is responsible for setting policy on how this should be done and educating 
residents and customers on how best to recycle. 

5. Environmental Health:  
a. Pest control – free treatments for rats, mice, cockroaches, bedbugs and pharaohs 

ants   
b. Private sector Housing interventions – complaints and investigations regarding 

condition of properties  
c. Other public health interventions – refuse, hoarding, bonfires 
d. Noise complaints – day time and night time noise complaints ,   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 21



Page 4 of 22 
 

2. West / Central Area Profiles  
 

In this section an update of what teams have been doing in the previous six months is detailed.  

 

 

 

  

Page 22



Page 5 of 22 
 

Ward Profile: Castle  
 

Map 

 

 

Community Engagement team  
 

All Community Payback works have been suspended since March 2020 and remain so at the 
present time.  
 
If you would like to nominate some work for the Community Payback to undertake or to get 
involved with volunteering, please get in contact with the Community Engagement Team.  
 
Dog Warden Service 
 
Regular patrolling of the green open spaces Histon Road Recreation Ground and Histon Road 
Cemetery (Dogs on leads specified area) 
 
Tavistock Road – Stray dog found by a member of the public and taken to Wood Green Animal 
Shelter. The dog was microchipped, but the current keeper details were not registered on a 
microchipping database. The service was able to reunite the dog with its owner. A following up 
warning letter has been complied with and the dog is now microchipped in accordance with the 
regulations.  
 
To contact us regarding a dog issue, please contact your dog warden Bree Donovan.  
 
  

Page 23



Page 6 of 22 
 

Enforcement team  
 

Regular patrols are carried out in the area and officers 
spend approximately 10-15 hours per week there. 
Particular attention is given to Castle Park closed 
Recycling centre, as it is particularly bad for fly tipping. 
 
Castle Park Recycling Centre – This site seems to be a 
hot spot area for dumping of waste even though the bins 
have been taken away. Officers have investigated eight 
separate offences from this site, six of which no action 
has been taken as there was a lack of evidence. One 
resulted in a fixed penalty notice being issued for fly-
tipping. This has since been paid. The other case is 
currently still on-going. Officers continue to make this site 
a priority even though the bins have now been removed 
because it still seems to be causing issues. 
 
Victoria Road – Two litter from vehicle offence have been 
witnessed in this area. Both resulted in the offenders 
being issued with fixed penalty notices. One has since 
been paid the other is going through the court process.  

 
There have also been several other fly-tips that 
have been investigated within the Castle ward. 
However, none have resulted in any further action 
being taken due to the nature of the waste having 
been dumped. These have been in Chesterton 
Road and St Peters Street. 
 
Seven suspected abandoned vehicles have been 
investigated within Castle. One of which was 
declared abandoned and subsequently destroyed, 
and a fixed penalty notice has been issued for 
abandoning a vehicle as the case is on-going. 
Another vehicle was declared abandoned and is 
currently being stored for 21 days. The other five 
vehicles were either claimed or removed by the 
owners.  
 
If you would like to report an environmental crime 
issue in your ward, please get in contact with your 
Enforcement Officer, Jess Tombs.   

Operations service  

  
In January the Street Cleansing section ‘went live’ with a new electronic system called Alloy. This 
system takes reports from online web-forms and turns them into specific jobs for operatives to 
carry out; using a map-based location to enable operatives to find and complete these tasks a lot 
quicker than before. The system also allocates the teams daily work meaning less paperwork and 
a better record of what work has been carried out and when. The Grounds Maintenance side of 
this system is still being developed. 

Page 24



Page 7 of 22 
 

The Operations teams have been busy during the last few months continuing to carry out 
scheduled mechanical sweeping all bus routes, main roads and housing footways and 
carriageways.  
 
During the COVID 19 pandemic we have seen an increase in litter and fly tipping our teams in the 
area are continuing to keep the area clear and have been working during the lockdown as 
business as usual.  
 
If you would like to report a cleansing or grounds maintenance issue, please contact our Customer 
Service Centre.  
 

Page 25



Page 8 of 22 
 

Ward Profile: Market  
 

Map 

 

Community Engagement team  
 

In February the 
Community Engagement 
team undertook a 
volunteer session in the 
city centre and worked to 
remove old tags and 
cable ties from street 
furniture and church 
railings.  
 
At the end of February, 
the team supported a river 
litter pick through the 
ward with Surfers Against 
Sewage.  
 

Page 26



Page 9 of 22 
 

The team have an ongoing project to renovate 
the benches at Parkers Piece, during lockdown 
the work was postponed, but recommenced in 
July with social distancing measures in place. 
This activity continues to be a Tuesday morning 
activity for volunteers, attracting several regulars 
who are helping to improve the benches and 
green space. 
 

The regular litter picks organised by the 
Community Engagement team recommenced 
in July and are taking part on Thursdays and 
Sundays throughout the summer. Picks that 
have been completed include those at Jesus 
Green on 9th July, Parkers Piece / Christs 
Pieces on 16th and 26th July.  
 
All Community Payback works have been 
suspended since March 2020 and remain so 
at the present time.  

 

If you would like to nominate some work for the Community Payback to undertake or to get 
involved with volunteering, please get in contact with the Community Engagement Team.  
 
Dog Warden Service 
 
Regular patrolling of the city centre and green open spaces Christs Pieces, Jesus Green, 
Midsummer Common and Parkers Piece.  
 
Christs Pieces – A fixed penalty notice was issued for failing to pick up dog faeces. A customer 
reported incidents of the PSPO Dog Exclusion area inside the Tennis Courts not being complied 
with and being used to exercise dogs. New dog exclusion signs installed on the entrance gates to 
the courts and targeted patrols of the area providing education to dog walkers in relation to the 
PSPO. 
 
Jesus Green – Intimidating dog reported. Contact made with the dog owner and advice / education 
provided. No further incidents reported to date. Reports received of an intimidating dog kept by a 
rough sleeper in the city centre. The male owner and dog were identified and provided with a 
referral to Wood Green Outreach team for help and advice. 
 
To contact us regarding a dog issue, please contact your dog warden Bree Donovan.  
 
Enforcement team  
 
An illegal encampment was discovered on Burleigh Street, and a 24-hour notice to move was 
served. Upon inspection after the time line had expired the tent along with belongings was still on 
site. All items were seized and taken into storage for 28 days and information was left informing 
the owner how to reclaim any items.  Page 27



Page 10 of 22 
 

 
On Fitzroy Street a breach of a statutory notice 
(Section 47 Notice) was investigated, and it was 
found that a business has failed to manage their 
waste correctly, the matter was dealt with by way 
of a fixed penalty notice. Two individuals were also 
served fixed penalty notices for littering cigarettes 
outside of the Grafton Centre.  
 
There were breaches of statutory notices (Section 
47 Notices) relating to several companies and in 
all cases fixed penalty notices were issued, 
offences were found at East Road, two businesses 
had breached their notices at Market Street and a 
further breach was found a business on Regent 
Street. Additionally, in Green Street two 
businesses have been issued fixed penalty notices 
for failing to manage their business waste correctly 
and there is also an ongoing investigation into 
another. There is currently an ongoing 
investigation into some business waste that has 
been found on Trinity Street.  
 
Lion Yard, New Square, Park Terrace, Regent 
Street, St Andrews Street have had officers foot 

patrolling the locations and this has culminated in twenty-one fixed penalty notices being issued 
for littering of cigarettes, there is also an ongoing investigation into another. There have been 
three cases referred to Legal Services for prosecution for littering.  
 
Domestic household waste has been found littered at the location of Portugal Place, Market Hill, 
Maids Causeway, Sidney Street and Adan and Eve Street and these are all being investigated. 
One suspect has already admitted the offence and has been issued a fixed penalty notice 
accordingly. Fly tips at the locations of Kings Street and Adam and Eve Street are currently being 
investigated. 
 
Five vehicles within the Market ward were 
either reported abandoned or found during 
proactive patrols, all have been 
investigated, two of which remain 
unclaimed, one has been dealt with by way 
of a fixed penalty notice issued to the 
current registered owner.  
 
If you would like to report an environmental 
crime issue in your ward, please get in 
contact with your Enforcement Offices, 
Andy Hine and Steve Phillips.  

Operations service  

  
In January the Street Cleansing section ‘went live’ with a new electronic system called Alloy. This 
system takes reports from online web-forms and turns them into specific jobs for operatives to 
carry out; using a map-based location to enable operatives to find and complete these tasks a lot 
quicker than before. The system also allocates the teams daily work meaning less paperwork and 

Page 28



Page 11 of 22 
 

a better record of what work has been carried out and when. The Grounds Maintenance side of 
this system is still being developed. 
 
The Operations teams have been busy during the last few months continuing to carry out 
scheduled mechanical sweeping all bus routes, main roads and housing footways and 
carriageways.  
 
During the COVID 19 pandemic we have seen an increase in litter and fly tipping our teams in the 
area are continuing to keep the area clear and have been working during the lockdown as 
business as usual.  
 
If you would like to report a cleansing or grounds maintenance issue, please contact our Customer 
Service Centre.  

 

  

Page 29



Page 12 of 22 
 

Ward Profile: Newnham  
 

Map 

 

 

Community Engagement team  
 
 
The regular litter picks hosted by the Community Engagement team recommenced in July and are 
taking part on Thursdays and Sundays throughout the summer. Picks that have been completed 
include those at Lammas Land on 30th July, and Mill Pond / Coe Fen on 2nd July.  
 
All Community Payback works have been suspended since March 2020 and remain so at the 
present time.  
 
If you would like to nominate some work for the Community Payback to undertake or to get 
involved with volunteering, please get in contact with the Community Engagement Team.  
 
Dog Warden Service 
 
Regular patrolling of the green open spaces Lammas Land, Paradise Nature Reserve and 
Sheep’s Green. 
 
Kings Road – Fouling problem reported by customer and new fouling signage installed. 
  
To contact us regarding a dog issue, please contact your dog warden Bree Donovan.  

Page 30



Page 13 of 22 
 

 
Enforcement team  
 
During the period between February and July 2020 
officers continued to undertake proactive and 
reactive patrols on the open spaces’ patrols. This 
includes illegal campers, and littering patrols. 
 
The driver of a vehicle on Barton Road was 
witnessed by an enforcement Officer to discard his 
cigarette from his window. Subsequent checks were 
carried out and the suspect was issued a fixed 
penalty notice for littering. 
  
Three vehicles were reported abandoned and 
damaged on Clerk Maxwell Road. The Police were 
initially involved due to the damage and tried to 
contact the owners, due to officers working 
partnership with the Police they shared the details 
allowing officers to investigate to trace to owners, 
and subsequently two of the vehicles were claimed. 
The third remained unclaimed and is currently in 
storage. A complaint was received regarding an 
abandoned vehicle parked in Grantchester 

Meadows, the registered keeper was contacted, and the vehicle was subsequently claimed 
 
Reports of abandoned vehicles in Adams 
Road and Owlstone Road were received and 
both vehicles were inspected, and seven-day 
notices served informing the owners that 
officers believed they may be abandoned, 
asking them to claim it. The vehicle in Adams 
Road was never claimed and was removed 
from the road by the council contractors, the 
vehicle in Owlstone Road was claimed by the 
registered keeper.  
 
Two additional abandoned vehicles were 
investigated within the ward, one with foreign 
plates, this was never claimed and was 
removed and destroyed. The other vehicle was 
subsequently claimed by the owner.  
 
A driver was observed discarding his cigarette 
end out of the driver’s window at the location of 
Owlstone Road, this was subsequently 
investigated; the owner has admitted the 
offence and the case is ongoing.  
  
If you would like to report an environmental 
crime issue in your ward, please get in contact 
with your Enforcement Officers, Steve Phillips 
and Andy Hine.  
  

Page 31



Page 14 of 22 
 

Operations service  
 
In January the Street Cleansing section ‘went live’ with a new electronic system called Alloy. This 
system takes reports from online web-forms and turns them into specific jobs for operatives to 
carry out; using a map-based location to enable operatives to find and complete these tasks a lot 
quicker than before. The system also allocates the teams daily work meaning less paperwork and 
a better record of what work has been carried out and when. The Grounds Maintenance side of 
this system is still being developed. 
 
The Operations teams have been busy during the last few months continuing to carry out 
scheduled mechanical sweeping all bus routes, main roads and housing footways and 
carriageways.  
 
During the COVID 19 pandemic we have seen an increase in litter and fly tipping our teams in the 
area are continuing to keep the area clear and have been working during the lockdown as 
business as usual.  
 
If you would like to report a cleansing or grounds maintenance issue, please contact our Customer 
Service Centre.  

  

Page 32



Page 15 of 22 
 

Community Engagement Team Updates 
 

Great British Spring Clean:  

As part of the Great British 
Spring Clean, the Community 
Engagement Team will be 
organising litter picks across 
the city to support the 
rescheduled 2020 campaign.  
 
You can find out more about 
the campaign and the events 
nearby on the Keep Britain 
Tidy webpage: 
https://www.keepbritaintidy.or
g/get-involved/support-our-
campaigns/great-british-
spring-clean  
 
The council organised litter picks are detailed below:  

Date Location of pick Meeting location Time 

Friday 11th September Kings Hedges (Pulley 
Rec) Recreation Ground 

By the play area 11am to 12pm 

Saturday 12th September Coldham’s Common Barnwell Road 
entrance 

11am to 12pm 

Sunday 13th September Cherry Hinton Hall Main car park 11am to 12pm 

Monday 14th September Logan’s Meadow Entrance off Logan’s 
Way 

11am to 12pm 

Wednesday 16th September Stourbridge Common By playground 11am to 12pm 

Thursday 17th September Lammas Land By paddling pool 11am to 12pm 

Saturday 19th September Jesus Green Public toilets 11am to 12pm 

Sunday 20th September Mill Road Cemetery Mill Road entrance 11am to 12pm 

Tuesday 22nd September Parkers Piece / Christs 
Pieces 

By the pavilion (PP) 11am to 12pm 

Thursday 24th September Nuns Way Recreation 
Ground 

Outside pavilion 11am to 12pm 

Saturday 26th September Romsey Recreation 
Ground 

Vinery Road main 
entrance 

11am to 12pm 

Sunday 27th September Midsummer Common By Fort St George 11am to 12pm 

 

Hedgehog Holes 

The Community Engagement Team continues to work 
with Cambridge Hedgehogs to promote hedgehog holes 
and highways. The team can assist residents by cutting 
holes in fences to facilitate hedgehog movement 
between gardens. To date the team have cut over thirty 
new hedgehog holes across the city.  
 
Should residents wish to have a hedgehog hole cut they 
can email the Community Engagement Team at 
sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk who will make suitable 
arrangements bearing in mind Covid-19 restrictions.   

Page 33

https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-british-spring-clean
https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-british-spring-clean
https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-british-spring-clean
https://www.keepbritaintidy.org/get-involved/support-our-campaigns/great-british-spring-clean
mailto:sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk


Page 16 of 22 
 

Greater Cambridge Shared Waste Service Update: 

Greater Cambridge Shared Waste Service Updates for Cambridge (Covers the period of January 
to March 2020):  

 

Event Date Area 

Abbeyfield recycling seminar 29.01.2020 Girton Green 

SOS Funded Community Action Day 08.02 2020 Hobart Road 

Fix it Fest with champions recycling table 15.02 2020 Arbury Community Centre 

Get Ready to Rent ARU Accommodation 
Fair 17.2 2020 Kelsey Kerridge Sports Centre 

Rampton sustainable future event 29.02.2020 Rampton 

SOS Funded CAD 29.2 2020 Jack Warren Green 

SOS Funded CAD 07.03 2020 Walpole Road 

Gilbert Close SOS Funded CAD 11.03 2020 Gilbert Close 

Recycling talk at Assembly 09.03 2020 Swavesey Primary School 

Recycling talk for Nursery 12.03 2020 Over Nursery 

Page 34



Page 17 of 22 
 

3. Environmental and Waste Data 

Public Realm [West / Central Area] 

Period Activity 
Total number of 

incidents 

Ward 

Castle Market Newnham 

Feb 2019 to Jul 2019 

Fly tipping 

59 13 41 5 

Feb 2020 to Jul 2020 40 7 17 18 

Feb 2019 to Jul 2019 

Needles 

603 needles 
62 needles (14 

instances) 
728 needles (47 

instances) 
13 needles (2 

instances) 

Feb 2020 to Jul 2020 33 needles 7 needles (1 instance) 
19 needles (8 

instances) 
9 needles (2 instance) 

Feb 2019 to Jul 2019 

Fixed penalty notices 

270 17 240 13 

Feb 2020 to Jul 2020 73 7 60 6 

Summary of public realm data:  

Fly tipping: 

 
Of the seven reports for fly tip in the Castle ward, two came from Castle Hill area; no other trends with types of fly tipped material were identified 
in this period. In Market, there were repeat incidents at Walnut Tree Avenue (2), Adam and Eve Street (2) and Newmarket Road (2) most of the 
waste dumped was either bagged commercial waste or loose commercial waste, and no other trends for fly tipping in this ward were identified. In 
Newnham seven of the reports were for waste dumped at Clerk Maxwell Road and consisted of non-recyclable household waste, and five were 
Lammas Land recycling centre.   
  

P
age 35



Page 18 of 22 
 

Needles:  
 

 Castle: Seven needles were removed from Castle Park in March.   

 Market:  
o In Paradise Street there were repeat instances of needles, two were cleared in February, and 11 in July (two instances).  
o At Salmon Lane, two needles were removed in February, in East Road one needle was removed in February.  
o At Christs Pieces one needle was removed in March, at Regent Terrace one needle was removed in April, and one needle was 

removed from Emmanuel Road in July.   

 Newnham: Four needles were removed from Mill Pond in April, and five needles were removed from Kings Lane in the same period.  
 

Fixed penalty notices:  

 

Fixed penalty notices issued across the period includes 55 for littering, 11 for trade related waste (including littering, fly tipping and breaching of a 
statutory notice), three for domestic related waste (including littering and fly tipping), one for failure to comply with a community protection notice, 
one for failure to clear up dog mess and two for abandoning a vehicle.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 36



Page 19 of 22 
 

Private Realm [West / Central Area]  

 

Period Activity Investigations 
Treatments 
Carried out 

Informal Action 
/ Written 

Warnings 

Statutory 
Notices Served 

Legal 
Proceedings 

Feb 2019 to Jul 
2019 

Pest Control NA 

59 

NA NA NA 
Feb 2020 to Jul 

2020 
35 

Feb 2019 to Jul 
2019 Refuse and waste 

complaints 

2 

NA 
1
 

0 0 

Feb 2020 to Jul 
2020 

0 0 0 

Feb 2019 to Jul 
2019 Other public health 

interventions2 

4 

NA 
1
 

0 0 

Feb 2020 to Jul 
2020 

3 0 0 

Feb 2019 to Jul 
2019 

Noise complaints 

743
 

NA 
1
 

0 0 

Feb 2020 to Jul 
2020 

73
3
 0 0 

Feb 2019 to Jul 
2019 Private Sector 

Housing 
interventions 

12
4
 

NA 
1
 

3 0 

Feb 2020 to Jul 
2020 

6
4
 0 0 

Summary 
The reduction in Private Sector Housing interventions and Pest treatments can be attributed to being within lockdown and the restrictions 
imposed by Covid 19.  

                                                
1
 All complaints will generally have at least one such action. 

2
 Other public health complaints includes odour, smoke, bonfires, filthy and verminous 

3
 Where multiple complaints have been received from one person these have only be counted as one complaint 

4
 Please note this figure relates to investigation of reactive service request and does not include proactive inspections. 

P
age 37



Page 20 of 22 
 

Waste and Recycling Data [Great Cambridge Area]  

Recycling rate:  

 
This is based total amount of recycling collected in blue and green bins. Waste is subject to 
seasonable fluctuations. 

 

Number of collections completed as scheduled:  

This shows the number of bins that were collected as scheduled (in number and a % and therefore 
the amount also missed). 
 

Quarter Missed Possible Actual % Missed % Collected 

19-20 Q1 3,590 2,027,570 2,023,980 0.18% 99.82% 

19-20 Q2 5,237 2,184,226 2,178,989 0.24% 99.76% 

19-20 Q3 3,219 2,147,116 2,143,917 0.15% 99.85% 

19-20 Q4 2,985 2,185,717 2,182,732 0.14% 99.86% 

 

  

Activity 
Q1 Apr-Jun 

19/20 

Q2 Jul-Sep 

19/20 

Q3 Oct-Dec 

19/20 
Q4 Jan-Mar 

19/20 
Total for 
2019/20 

Q1 Apr- 
Jun 20/21 

Recycling rate 
– dry recycling 

55.10% 52.28% 49.08% 45.36% 50.99% 51.17% 

Recycling rate 
– composting 

33.67% 31.16% 25.10% 17.97% 26.95% 23.69% 

Amount 
collected for 

disposal 
44.89% 46.30% 51.11% 54.7% 49.37% 50.84% 

Month Missed Possible Actual % Missed % Collected 

Apr-19 1,260 653,426 652,166 0.19% 99.81% 

May-19 1,152 712,690 711,538 0.16% 99.84% 

Jun-19 1,178 661,454 660,276 0.18% 99.82% 

Jul-19 1,986 756,944 754,958 0.26% 99.74% 

Aug-19 2,172 731,857 729,685 0.30% 99.70% 

Sept-19 1,079 695,425 694,346 0.16% 99.84% 

Oct-19 1,109 758,064 756,975 0.15% 99.85% 

Nov-19 1,391 695,687 694,296 0.20% 99.80% 

Dec-19 719 693,365 692,646 0.11% 99.89% 

Jan-20 1,540 795,436 793,896 0.19% 99.81% 

Feb-20 545 661,454 660,909 0.08% 99.92% 

Mar-20 900 728,827 727,927 0.12% 99.88% 

Apr-20 729 722,169 721,440 0.10% 99.90% 

May-20 848 695,687 694,839 0.12% 99.88% 

Jun-20 876 695,687 694,811 0.13% 99.87% 

Page 38



Page 21 of 22 
 

4. Key contacts  

  

Area Contact Telephone Number Email 

Community Engagement 
Community Engagement 

Team 
01223 458084 sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk  

Enforcement (Castle) Jess Toombs 01223 457730 jess.toombs@cambridge.gov.uk 

Enforcement (Market and 
Newnham) 

Andy Hine  
Steve Phillips 

01223 458579 
01223 457638 

andrew.hine@cambridge.gov.uk 
Steve.phillips@cambridge.gov.uk  

Dog Warden (West area) Bree Donovan (Wed-Fri) 01223 458122 dogwarden@cambridge.gov.uk 

Streets and Open Spaces 
Operations / Commercial 

Paul Jones 01223 458282 paul.jones@cambridge.gov.uk 

West Area Operations Team Leader Sarah Phillips 01223 458282 sarah.phillips@cambridge.gov.uk  

Recycling Champions Birgitta Laurent 07525 213774 recycling.champions@scambs.gov.uk  

If you have a question about one of the council’s services, you will be able to find a number of answers on our website www.cambridge.gov.uk.  If 
you can't find what you are looking for, or want to discuss something with us, you can contact us on the details above or call 01223 457000.  

 

P
age 39

mailto:sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:jess.toombs@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:andrew.hine@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:Steve.phillips@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:dogwarden@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:paul.jones@cambridge.gov.uk
mailto:sarah.phillips@cambridge.gov.uk
tel:07525%20213774
mailto:recycling.champions@scambs.gov.uk
http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/


Page 22 of 22 
 

5. Volunteer schemes  
  

Time Credits  
You can earn Time Credits for your time as volunteer. Every hour of involvement with us earns 
you a 1-hour time credit – which can be spent in places like cinemas, gyms, swimming pools or 
music venues. The more time you give the more time credits you receive. 

 
Streets and Open Spaces Volunteers: 
We're looking for volunteers to make the streets of Cambridge even cleaner, tidier and more 
pleasant and to spread our motto ‘A greener, cleaner city starts with you’. So, whether you're 
already part of an existing local group and want some additional support or you're an individual 
who feels strongly about these issues, then get in touch to take part. Our volunteers work to 
improve their local streets by acting to keep them clean, tidy and looking their best. 
 
With the support of a dedicated Area Ranger you'll be able to: 

 Recruit other local people to help you in a project 
 Organise events locally to promote cleaner streets: litter picks, ward walks etc. 
 Have access to and use specialist equipment for removing graffiti and litter 
 Take part in large city-wide events for volunteers 
 Provide education to other members of the public 
 Get involved with new volunteer roles/projects  
 

As a volunteer you're free to suggest your own ideas and we will do our best to accommodate 
them. We don't expect you to give huge amounts of time to our projects, as a volunteer, we just 
hope you can commit some regular time each month to keep the project active and vibrant in the 
community. 
 
To sign up or find out more visit our webpage https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/streets-and-open-
spaces-volunteers or contact our Community Engagement Team on 
sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk  or 01223 458084 
 

Recycling Champions:  
Are you a passionate about recycling? Would you like to meet other people who are also keen to 
help to promote recycling, minimizing waste and sustainability? Do you enjoy working with the 
public? If yes, then why not become a recycling champion. The Greater Cambridge Shared Waste 
Service is looking for volunteers to help spread the word about recycling within the community. You 
don't need any experience or previous knowledge, you just need to believe that recycling is 
important, be friendly and approachable and be willing to convey your enthusiasm about helping 
the environment to others. Full training will be provided. 

 
Our volunteers do a variety of roles such as: 

- Run stalls at various events in the city and south of Cambridge 
- Do door knocking around flats, hand out leaflets  
- Attend monthly recycling champions meetings 
- Do talks to community groups and schools about recycling  
- Write articles in newsletters and go on trips to visit various recycling sites to learn 

about waste management and recycling.  
 

To become a recycling champion please visit our webpage 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/become-a-recycling-champion, or contact 
recycling.champions@scambs.gov.uk  or telephone 07525 213774. 

Page 40

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/streets-and-open-spaces-volunteers
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/streets-and-open-spaces-volunteers
mailto:sosvolunteers@cambridge.gov.uk
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/become-a-recycling-champion
mailto:recycling.champions@scambs.gov.uk
tel:07525%20213774

	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Matters and Actions Arising From the Minutes
	7 Policing and Safer Neighbourhoods
	8 WCAC - Environmental Report

